
 

        

APPENDIX A 

GEOTECHNICAL REPORT  













































Top of Pile 
Elevation, Ft

Length of Pile, 
Ft Pile Batter

Pile Tip 
Elevation, Ft

Calculated 
Ultimate 

Capacity, Kips

Current Design 
Load w/ Pile 
Self‐Weight, 

kips*

Current Design 
Load Factor of 

Safety

Allowable 
Load w/ F.S. = 
2.0 Including 
Pile Self‐

Weight, kips

Allowable 
Load w/ F.S. = 
2.0  w/o Pile 
Self‐Weight, 

kips*
6.33 80 0:12 ‐73.67 518 259 2.0 259 235
6.33 80 1:12 ‐73.39 512 274 1.9 256 232
6.33 80 1:6 ‐72.58 494 274 1.8 247 223
6.33 80 1:4 ‐71.28 466 274 1.7 233 209

*Effective weight of 80' pile = 24 kips

PIER B SOUTH REHABILITATION
OUTBOARD PILES ‐ 24‐INCH SQUARE PRECAST CONCRETE

March 21, 2024



1

Allison Schaeffer

From: Hank Oakes <hoakes@geoengr.com>
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2023 10:04 AM
To: Lowry Denty
Cc: Michael Tugwell
Subject: RE: APA Pier B South Precast Piles

I don’t see a reason that you could not be as close as 3 ft to existing piles. 
 

Hank M. Oakes, P.E. 
Geotechnical Engineering-Testing, Inc. 
904 Butler Drive 
Mobile, Alabama 36693 
Phone 251-666-7197 ext. 2562 
 

From: Lowry Denty <Lowry.Denty@mottmac.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2023 10:00 AM 
To: Hank Oakes <hoakes@geoengr.com> 
Cc: Michael Tugwell <Michael.Tugwell@mottmac.com> 
Subject: RE: APA Pier B South Precast Piles 
 
Hank, 
 
We are trying to stay at least 5ft from existing piles with the new, but if needed can we get a little closer knowing that 
the existing piles will have no load on them other than self-weight? 
 

Lowry J. Denty, PE 
Principal Project Manager 

D +1 (850) 602 9760      C +1 (850) 698 3509       
lowry.denty@mottmac.com 

 

 

From: Hank Oakes <hoakes@geoengr.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2023 9:37 AM 
To: Lowry Denty <Lowry.Denty@mottmac.com> 
Cc: Michael Tugwell <Michael.Tugwell@mottmac.com>; Allison Schaeffer <Allison.Schaeffer@mottmac.com> 
Subject: RE: APA Pier B South Precast Piles 
 
Sounds good.  Thanks. 
 

Hank M. Oakes, P.E. 
Geotechnical Engineering-Testing, Inc. 
904 Butler Drive 
Mobile, Alabama 36693 
Phone 251-666-7197 ext. 2562 
 

From: Lowry Denty <Lowry.Denty@mottmac.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2023 9:35 AM 
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SURVEY  
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APPENDIX C 

TURBIDITY CURTAIN   
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Turbidity Curtain Notes:

LAYDOWN BARGE

195'-0" x 35'-0" LAYDOWN BARGE

195'-0" x 35'-0"

APPROXIMATE FLOATING

TURBIDITY CURTAIN

EXTERIOR BOUNDARY LIMITS

PLAN AT PIER B SOUTH

BENT 92

FOR AREAS 2 TH
RU 5

BARGE TRAVEL

BULKHEAD WALL

F/EXISTING

DECK AND CAP LIMITS

EXISTING PIER A

EXISTING

PIER B

(SEE NOTE 12)

CRANE BARGE

140'-0" x 92'-0"

(SEE NOTE 12)

CRANE BARGE

140'-0" x 92'-0"

AREA 2

AREA 3

AREA 4
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1

CHANNEL

NAVIGABLE

EDGE OF

1. The positions of floating turbidity curtain along the slip and channel side illustrate the 

general requirements around the demolition and construction activities as these operations 

progress around the Pier B South work area.

2. The turbidity barrier shall conform to "The Alabama Handbook For Erosion Control, Sediment 

Control, and Stormwater Management On Construction Sites And Urban Areas".

3. The location of the turbidity curtains shown on these plans are for encapsulation of the 

demolition and construction zones. Turbidity curtains shall be located and repositioned by the 

contractor using best management practices to assure water quality standards are maintained 

throughout demolition and construction.

4. Barriers should be a bright color (yellow or "international" orange are recommended) that will 

attract the attention of nearby boaters.

5. The curtain fabric shall meet manufacturer's recommendations for the application.

6. Floatation devices shall be flexible, buoyant units contained in an individual floatation sleeve 

or collar attached to the curtain. Buoyancy provided by the floatation units shall be sufficient 

to support the weight of the curtain and maintain a freeboard of at least 3 inches above the 

water surface level.

7. The Contractor is responsible for maintenance of the curtain shall do so for the duration of 

the project in order to ensure the continuous protection of the watercourse.

8. Should repairs to the geotextile fabric become necessary, repair kits are generally available 

from the manufacturer. The manufacturer's instructions must be followed to ensure the 

adequacy of the repair.

9. When the curtain is no longer required the curtain and related components shall be removed in 

such a manner as to minimize turbidity. Remaining sediment shall be sufficiently settled 

before removing the curtain. Sediment may be removed and the original depth (or plan 

elevation) restored. Any spoils must be taken to an approved upland disposal area and 

stabilized in accordance with the approved plan.

10.Turbidity curtains shall be located and secured to prevent conflict and / or creation of a 

navigation hazard to passing vessel traffic and adjacent marine facilities.

11.A floating turbidity barrier shall be attached directly to the barges and adjacent existing Pier 

B piling when the demolition or construction operations are being performed.

12.Crane barge basis of design is a minimum 200 ton Manitowoc Ringer 4100 with A-frame for 

anticipated maximum barge size shown. Barge sizes may vary based on actual crane used. Two 

different orientations are shown and can be interchanged at contractors discretion.

TYPICAL WORK ZONE:

 & CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS

 FACE, & RIVER FACE DURING DEMOLITION

 SHIFTED ALONG THE PIER LENGTH, SLIP

 B PILES. THE BARRIER SHALL BE

 TIED TO THE BARGES AND EXISTING PIER

FLOATING TURBIDITY BARRIER SHALL BE

SUMMARY OF IN WATER WORK:

(200' x 19')

PLATFORM OFFSET

AREA 2

(140' x 19')

PLATFORM OFFSET

AREA 3

(180' x 28.5')

PLATFORM OFFSET

AREA 1

AREA 1 IN WATER WORK:

1.DEMOLISH PARTIAL SECTION OF EXIST CONCRETE PIER (DECK, SUPPORT BEAMS, SUPPORT WALLS)

2.CONSTRUCT NEW PLATFORM OFFSET (180' L X 28.5' W) THAT INCLUDES:

- (36) 24" SQ X 60'-0"  PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILES.

- (9) 3'-8" WIDE x 3'-0" PILE CAPS

- 18" CONCRETE DECK

- T/DECK EL TO MATCH EXISTING

AREA 2 IN WATER WORK:

1.DEMOLISH PARTIAL SECTION OF EXIST CONCRETE PIER (DECK, SUPPORT BEAMS, SUPPORT WALLS)

2.CONSTRUCT NEW PLATFORM OFFSET (200' L X 19' W) THAT INCLUDES:

- (30) 24" SQ X 60'-0"  PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILES.

- (10) 3'-8" WIDE x 3'-0" PILE CAPS

- 18" CONCRETE DECK

- T/DECK EL TO MATCH EXISTING

AREA 3 IN WATER WORK:

1.DEMOLISH PARTIAL SECTION OF EXIST CONCRETE PIER (DECK, SUPPORT BEAMS, SUPPORT WALLS)

2.CONSTRUCT NEW PLATFORM OFFSET (140' L X 19' W) THAT INCLUDES:

- (21) 60'-0"  NEW PRESTRESSED CONCRETE PILES.

- (7) 3'-8" WIDE x 3'-0" PILE CAPS

- 18" CONCRETE DECK

- T/DECK EL TO MATCH EXISTING

,

FOR REFERENCE ONLY
CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT OWN
BMP PLAN FOR REVIEW PRIOR TO

CONSTRUCTION

502397324-001
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NATIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (NEPA) 
 

 
Mitigation Measures and Conditions [CFR 1505.2(c)]:  
Summarized below are all mitigation measures adopted by the Responsible Entity to reduce, avoid 
or eliminate adverse environmental impacts and to avoid non-compliance or non-conformance 
with the above-listed authorities and factors. These measures/conditions must be incorporated 
into project contracts, development agreements and other relevant documents. The staff 
responsible for implementing and monitoring mitigation measures should be clearly identified in 
the mitigation plan.  
  
Law, Authority, or Factor: Endangered Species Act 
 
Mitigation Measure or Condition: In a letter dated 6/8/2023, the USFWS requested that the 
following mitigation measures be implemented during construction to avoid adverse impacts to the 
Gulf Sturgeon, West Indian Manatee, and Alabama red-bellied turtle.  
 
For the Gulf Sturgeon, if individuals are observed, halt operations until the species has left the 
area. If this step cannot be exercised or there is an occurrence of a collision with an/or injury to a 
sturgeon as a result of the project, then work should cease and further consultation with the 
USFWS should be undertaken. Any observation of a sturgeon within the area during project 
operations should be reported to the USFWS.  
 
For the West Indian Manatee, implement the USFWS Alabama Standard Manatee Construction 
Conditions (ASMCC) for in-water construction activities. The ASMCC are attached.  
 
For the Alabama red-bellied turtle, the USFWS requested that any observation of this species 
within the area during operation be reported to the USFWS. 
 
No mitigation for protected species was requested by the NMFS in their clearance letter dated 
11/6/2023. The NMFS 11/6/2023 letter is attached.  
 
The grant recipient is responsible for documenting and notifying HUD of all instances or 
occurrences triggering requirements for halting work, additional consultation with state or federal 
authorities, or other actions necessary to mitigate impacts to protected species. Additionally, the 
grantee will provide to HUD documentation evidencing satisfactory completion of all mitigation 
requirements, whether noted herein or required as a result of subsequent review and coordination 
with state and federal agencies. 
 
Law, Authority, or Factor: Soil Suitability / Slope/ Erosion / Drainage and Storm Water Runoff 
 
Mitigation Measure or Condition: Implementation of a SWPPP and construction best management 
practices will be completed. 
 
Mitigation Plan: The grant recipient is responsible for documenting and notifying HUD of all 
instances or occurrences triggering requirements for halting work, additional consultation with 
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state or federal authorities, or other actions necessary to mitigate impacts to protected species. 
Additionally, the grantee will provide to HUD documentation evidencing satisfactory completion of 
all mitigation requirements, whether noted herein or required as a result of subsequent review and 
coordination with state and federal agencies. 
 
Law, Authority, or Factor: Vegetation / Wildlife (Introduction, Modification, Removal, 
Disruption, etc.) 
 
Mitigation Measure or Condition: NMFS. Mitigation will be provided for impacts to wetlands through 
the purchase of credits from an approved mitigation bank. The NMFS Southeast Regional Office, 
Protected Species Construction Conditions will be followed. If necessary, ramp up pile driving will 
be implemented for pile installation using impact hammers.  USFWS. For the Gulf sturgeon, if any 
individuals are observed, halt operations until the species has left the area. If there is an 
occurrence of a collision with an/or injury to a sturgeon as a result of the proposed project, then 
work should cease and further consultation with the USFWS should be undertaken. The USFWS 
also requested that any observation of a sturgeon within the area during operation be reported to 
their office. For the West Indian Manatee, the USFWS requested that the Standard Manatee 
Conditions for In-Water Construction Activities (Standard Conditions) be implemented. If there is 
an occurrence of a collision with an/or injury to a manatee as a result of the proposed project, then 
work should cease and further consultation with the USFWS should be undertaken. The USFWS 
also requested that any observation of a manatee within the area during operation be reported to 
their office. The Standard Conditions are as follows: a. The lessee/grantee shall instruct all 
personnel associated with the project of the potential presence of manatees and the need to avoid 
collisions with manatees. All construction personnel are responsible for observing water-related 
activities for the presence of manatees. b. The lessee/grantee shall advise all construction 
personnel that there are civil and criminal penalties for harming, harassing, or killing manatees 
which are protected under the MMPA of 1972 and the ESA of 1973. c. Siltation barriers shall be 
made of material in which manatees cannot become entangled, are properly secured, and are 
regularly monitored to avoid manatee entrapment. Barriers must not block manatee entry to, or exit 
from, essential habitat. d. All vessels associated with the construction project shall operate at no 
wake/idle speeds at all times while in the construction area and while in water where draft of the 
vessel provides less than a four-foot clearance from the bottom. All vessels will follow routes of 
deep water whenever possible. e. If manatees are seen within 100 yards of the active daily 
construction/dredging operation or vessel movement, all appropriate precautions shall be 
implemented to ensure their protection. These precautions shall include the operation of all 
moving equipment no closer than 50 feet of a manatee. Operation of any equipment closer than 50 
feet to a manatee shall necessitate immediate shutdown of that equipment. Activities will not 
resume until the manatee(s) has departed the project area of its own volition. f. Any collision with 
and/or injury to a manatee shall be reported immediately to the USFWS at 251-441-5181. g. 
Temporary signs concerning the manatees shall be posted prior to and during all construction 
/dredging activities. All signs are to be removed by the lessee/grantee upon completion of the 
project. A sign measuring at least 3 by 4 ft. which reads Caution: Manatee Area will be posted in a 
location prominently visible to water related construction crews. A second sign should be posted if 
vessels are associated with the construction and should be placed visible to the vessel operator. 
The second sign should be at least 8 1/2 by 11 inches which reads Caution: Manatee Habitat. Idle 
speed is required if operating a vessel in the construction area. All equipment must be shut down if 
a manatee comes within 50 feet of operation. Any collision with and/or injury to a manatee shall be 
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reported immediately to the USFWS at 251-441-5181. For the Alabama red-bellied turtle, any 
observation of this species within the area during project operations be reported to their office. 
 
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
 
Project Mitigation Plan 

Mitigation measures are outlined above. Mitigation plans and responsible entities are 
outlined in the attached USACE Nationwide Permit 3, Maintenance issued for the 
project. The USACE Nationwide Permit 3 is attached. The grant recipient is responsible 
for documenting and notifying HUD of all instances or occurrences triggering 
requirements for halting work, additional consultation with state or federal authorities, or 
other actions necessary to mitigate impacts to protected species. Additionally, the 
grantee will provide to HUD documentation evidencing satisfactory completion of all 
mitigation requirements, whether noted herein or required as a result of subsequent 
review and coordination with state and federal agencies. 
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APPENDIX F 

HUD GRANT CONTRACT PROVISIONS   



 

FY2022 Community Project Funding 

Grant Contract Provisions 

 

Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations and Executive Orders 

This is an acknowledgement that HUD financial assistance will be used to fund all or a portion of the 
contract. The contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive orders, HUD 
policies, procedures, and directives. 
 
Nondiscrimination 

In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age 

Discrimination Act of 1975, and as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with 

Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, the Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any 

employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. 

In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other 

implementing requirements HUD may issue. 

 

Equal Employment Opportunity 

The following equal employment opportunity requirements apply to the underlying contract: 

(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as 

amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable equal 

employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, 

"Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of 

Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq ., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal 

Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive 

Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any 

applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the 

future affect construction activities undertaken in the course of the Project. The Contractor agrees 

to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated 

during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such 

action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or 

transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms 



of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, the Contractor 

agrees to comply with any implementing requirements HUD may issue. 

(b) Age - In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as 

amended, 29 U.S.C. § § 623, the Contractor agrees to refrain from discrimination against present 

and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with 

any implementing requirements HUD may issue. 

(c) Disabilities - In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 

42 U.S.C. § 12112, the Contractor agrees that it will comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment 

Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment 

of persons with disabilities. In addition, the Contractor agrees to comply with any implementing 

requirements HUD may issue. 

The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract financed in whole or in part 

with Federal assistance provided by HUD, modified only if necessary to identify the affected parties. 

 

Suspension and Debarment 2 CFR 200.214 

This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the 
contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its 
affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined 
at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 

The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must 
include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into. 

This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Alabama State Port Authority. If it is later 
determined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart 
C, in addition to remedies available Alabama State Port Authority, the Federal Government may pursue 
available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 

The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. 

pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise 

from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in 

its lower tier covered transactions. 

 

Lobbying (Any project over $100,000) 

No federal funds under this agreement may be used to influence or attempt to influence an officer or 

employee of any agency, a member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 

member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract, continuation, renewal, 

amendments other than federal appropriated funds. 

 

Drug Free Workplace 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees to (i) provide a drug-free workplace for the 
contractor's employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for 
employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, 



dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the contractor's 
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of such 
prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
contractor that the contractor maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the 
foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order of over $10,000, so that the provisions will be 
binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. 

For the purposes of this section, "drug-free workplace" means a site for the performance of work done in 
connection with a specific contract awarded to a contractor in accordance with this chapter, the 
employees of whom are prohibited from engaging in the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, 
dispensation, possession or use of any controlled substance or marijuana during the performance of the 
contract.   
 
Trafficking in persons 2 CFR Part 175 

This contract is covered by 2 CFR Part 175.  A person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or 
elected or appointed official of the recipient or subrecipient may not—  

i.     Engage in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of time that the award is in effect;  
ii.    Procure a commercial sex act during the period of time that the award is in effect; or  
iii.   Use forced labor in the performance of the award or subawards under the award.  

HUD, as the Federal awarding agency, may unilaterally terminate this award, without penalty. 
 
Conflict of Interest 

i.   In the procurement of property or services by recipients and subrecipients, the conflict-of-interest 
rules in 2 CFR 200.317 and 2 CFR 200.318(c) shall apply. In all cases not governed by 2 CFR 200.317 and 2 
CFR 200.318(c), recipients and subrecipients must follow the requirements contained in paragraphs ii-v 
below.  

ii.   General prohibition. No person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected or appointed 
official of the recipient or subrecipient and who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities 
with respect to assisted activities, or who is in a position to participate in a decision making process or 
gain inside information with regard to such activities, may obtain a financial interest or benefit from the 
activity, or have a financial interest in any contract, subcontract, or agreement with respect thereto, or 
the proceeds thereunder, either for himself or herself or for those with whom he or she has immediate 
family or business ties, during his or her tenure or for one year thereafter. Immediate family ties include 
(whether by blood, marriage or adoption) the spouse, parent (including a stepparent), child (including a 
stepchild), brother, sister (including a stepbrother or stepsister), grandparent, grandchild, and in-laws of 
a covered person.  

iii.   Exceptions. HUD may grant an exception to the general prohibition in paragraph (ii) upon the 
recipient’s written request and satisfaction of the threshold requirements in paragraph (iv), if HUD 
determines the exception will further the Federal purpose of the award and the effective and efficient 
administration of the recipient’s program or project, taking into account the cumulative effects of the 
factors in paragraph (v).  

iv.   Threshold requirements for exceptions. HUD will consider an exception only after the recipient has 
provided the following documentation: 

a.  A disclosure of the nature of the conflict, accompanied by an assurance that there has been public 
disclosure of the conflict and a description of how the public disclosure was made; and  



b.  An opinion of the recipient's attorney that the interest for which the exception is sought would 
not violate state or local law.  

v.   Factors to be considered for exceptions. In determining whether to grant a requested exception after 
the recipient has satisfactorily met the threshold requirements in paragraph (iii), HUD will consider the 
cumulative effect of the following factors, where applicable:  

a. Whether the exception would provide a significant cost benefit or an essential degree of expertise 
to the program or project that would otherwise not be available; 

b. Whether an opportunity was provided for open competitive bidding or negotiation;  
c. Whether the person affected is a member of a group or class of low- or moderate-income persons 

intended to be the beneficiaries of the assisted activity, and the exception will permit such person 
to receive generally the same interests or benefits as are being made available or provided to the 
group or class;  

d. Whether the affected person has withdrawn from his or her functions or responsibilities, or the 
decision-making process with respect to the specific assisted activity in question;  

e. Whether the interest or benefit was present before the affected person was in a position as 
described in paragraph (ii);  

f. Whether undue hardship will result either to the recipient or the person affected when weighed 
against the public interest served by avoiding the prohibited conflict; and  

g. Any other relevant considerations.  
 

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards (Contracts awarded by recipients in excess of $2000 for 

construction contracts and in excess of $2500 for other contracts that involve the employment of mechanics or 

laborers) 

1. Overtime requirements - No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract 

work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or 

permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such 

work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives 

compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours 

worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.  

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages - In the event of any violation of the 

clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible 

therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages.  In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall 

be liable to the United States for liquidated damages.  Such liquidated damages shall be computed 

with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed 

in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each 

calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard 

workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth 

in paragraph (1) of this section.  

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages - The ASPA shall upon its own action or 

upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or 

cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the Contractor 

or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same Contractor, 

or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 

Act, which is held by the same  Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to 



satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages 

as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.  

4. Subcontracts - The Contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set 

forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors 

to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  The Contractor shall be responsible for 

compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in 

paragraphs (1) through (4) of this section. 

 

Clean Air    (Contracts of amounts in excess of $100,000) 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to 

the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 . The Contractor agrees to report each violation to the 

Purchaser and understands and agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each violation as required 

to assure notification to MARAD and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.  

The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 

financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by HUD. 

 

Clean Water    (Contracts of amounts in excess of $100,000) 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to 

the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et . The Contractor agrees to report 

each violation to the Purchaser and understands and agrees that the Purchaser will, in turn, report each 

violation as required to assure notification to HUD and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.  

The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $100,000 

financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by HUD. 

 

Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (Contracts in excess of $2,000 for construction or repair) 

The Contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference 

in this contract. The Act provides that each contractor or subrecipient shall be prohibited from inducing, 

by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up 

any part of the compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The recipient shall report all suspected or 

reported violations to HUD.  

 

Section 3 HUD Act of 1968 

The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing 

and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended by the Housing and Community Development Act of 

1992 (Section 3). The purpose of Section 3, 24 CFR Part 75,  is to ensure that employment and other 

economic opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3, shall, 

to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly persons who 

are recipients of HUD assistance for housing. 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS--PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 
 
(1) The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

that it and its principals: 
 
(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible, or voluntarily excluded by any Federal department or agency; 
 

(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of 
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a 
criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or 
performing a public (Federal, State or local) transaction or contract under a 
public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or 
commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by 

a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the 
offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; 

 
(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had 

one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause 
or default. 
 

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the 
statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an 
explanation to this proposal. 

 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________________  ______________________________ 
Signature / Authorized Certifying Official   Typed Name & Title 

 
 
 
 
 
 

______________________________________  __________________________ 
 Applicant / Organization     Date Signed 
 
 



49 CFR PART 20--CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING 

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 

 
(To be submitted with each bid or offer exceeding $100,000) 

 

The undersigned [Contractor] certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the 
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of 
any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative 
agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for making lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned 
shall complete and submit Standard Form--LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in 
accordance with its instructions [as amended by "Government wide Guidance for New 
Restrictions on Lobbying," 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96).  Note: Language in paragraph (2) herein 
has been modified in accordance with Section 10 of the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 (P.L. 
104-65, to be codified at 2 U.S.C. 1601, et seq.)] 

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the 
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and 
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the 
Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995).  Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such 
failure. 

[Note: Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 1352(c)(1)-(2)(A), any person who makes a prohibited expenditure 
or fails to file or amend a required certification or disclosure form shall be subject to  
a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such expenditure 
or failure.] 

The Contractor, ___________________, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each 
statement of its certification and disclosure, if any.  In addition, the Contractor understands 
and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. A 3801, et seq., apply to this certification and 
disclosure, if any. 

 
 
__________________________ Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
__________________________ Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Official 
 
___________________________ Date 



AFFIDAVIT AND CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE 
 
FORM FOR SECTIONS 9 (a) and (b) BEASON-HAMMON ALABAMA TAXPAYER AND CITIZEN 
PROTECTION ACT; CODE OF ALABAMA, SECTIONS 31-13-9 (a) and (b) AFFIDAVIT FOR 
BUSINESS ENTITY/EMPLOYER /CONTRACTOR 
 
(To be completed as a condition for the award of any contract, grant, or incentive by the State 
of Alabama, any political subdivision thereof, or any state-funded entity to a business entity or 
employer that employs one or more employees) 
 
State of _________________________________________ 
 
County of _________________________________________ 
 
Before me, a notary public, personally appeared _____________________________ (print name)  

who, being duly sworn, says as follows: 

As a condition for the award of any contract, grant, or incentive by the State of Alabama, any 

political subdivision thereof, or any state-funded entity to a business entity or employer that 

employs one or more employees, I hereby attest that in my capacity as  

 

____________________________________ (state position) for ____________________ (state business 
entity/employer/contractor name) that said business entity/employer/contractor shall not 
knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien. 

I further attest that said business entity/employer/contractor is enrolled in the E-Verify 
program. 

 

(ATTACH DOCUMENTATION ESTABLISHING THAT BUSINESS 

 

ENTITY/EMPLOYER/CONTRACTOR IS ENROLLED IN THE E-VERIFY PROGRAM) 

 

___________________________________________Signature of Affiant 

 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this _____day of _________________________, ______. 

 

 

I certify that the affiant is known (or made known) to me to be the identical party he or she 

claims to be. 

 

 

_________________________________________Signature and Seal of Notary Public 


	Appendix A - Geotechnical Report.pdf
	Appendix B - Survey.pdf
	Appendix C - Turbidity Curtain.pdf
	Appendix D - Permit.pdf
	Appendix F - Hud Grant Contract Provisions.pdf

